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Sumforest  in brief 
(January 2014 - December 2017) 

 

The magnitude of climate, environmental 
and socio-economic changes that occur at 

global, regional or local scale, is causing 
new challenges to ensure the 

multifunctionality of European forests and 
achieve their sustainable management. 
Sumforest is built around i) the growing 

importance of changes, ii) the influence of 
many public policies on forest at the 

expense of a coherent forestry strategy and 
iii)  interactions between the multiple 

goods and services provided by the forest.  

 

Sumforest is part of the ERA-NET initiative, 
which objective is to step up the 

cooperation and coordination of research 
activities carried out at national or regional 
level in the Member States and Associated 
States through the networking of research 
activities and the mutual opening research 

programmes conducted at national or 
regional level. 

 

Sumforest will promote the sustainable 
management and use of forests and their 

multiple goods and services. Sumforest will 
play a crucial role in harmonising existing 

and future research programmes and 
supporting policy decisions relevant to the 

topic of sustainable forest management and 
ƳǳƭǘƛŦǳƴŎǘƛƻƴŀƭ ŦƻǊŜǎǘǊȅΦ {ǳƳŦƻǊŜǎǘΩǎ ƻǾŜǊŀƭƭ 
aim is it to build a European forest research 

area which promotes European-scale 
research. Cooperation with Russia and other 

eastern partnership countries will be 
established, with the aim of identifying 

common research priorities and initiatives. 
All the information on Sumforest are 

available here:  

https://www.sumforest.org/. 

Sumforest is funded by 
the European Union under 
Grant Agreement No. 

If you wish to unsubscribe our newsletter, please send an email 
ǊŜŦŜǊŜƴŎŜŘ άǳƴǎǳōǎŎǊƛōŜ {ǳƳŦƻǊŜǎǘέ ǘƻ Annabelle Amm 

Upcoming events 
 
07-10 July 2015, Paris, France 
Our Common Future Under Climate Change 
¢ƘŜ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ {ŎƛŜƴǘƛŦƛŎ /ƻƴŦŜǊŜƴŎŜ άhǳǊ /ƻƳƳƻƴ CǳǘǳǊŜ ǳƴŘŜǊ /ƭƛƳŀǘŜ /ƘŀƴƎŜέ 
will be held at UNESCO (Paris) from 07 to 10 July 2015.  

 

17 November 2015, Paris, France 
Workshop on strategic activities 
This workshop aims at completing a general strategic framework for Sumforest. It will 
be based on a SWOT analysis that results from the outcomes of Sumforest.  

 
24-25 November 2015, Lisbon, Portugal 
Final conference of Foresterra 
Chw9{¢9ww!Ωǎ Ŧƛƴŀƭ /ƻƴŦŜǊŜƴŎŜ Ƙŀǎ ŀǎ Ƴŀƛƴ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜǎ ǘƻ ŘƛǎǎŜƳƛƴŀǘŜ Chw9{¢9ww!Ωǎ 
results and achievements and to become a forum on perspectives and challenges for 
the Mediterranean Forest Industry and Research.  
 

30 November -  11 December 2015,  Paris, France 
COP 21  
21st Session of the Conference of the Parties to the United Nations Framework 
Convention on Climate Change (COP21/CMP11) . 

 

Summary 
 

Sumforest and "Our common future under climate change"  page 2 

COST Action FP1403 "Non-native tree species for European forests - 
experiences, risks and opportunities (NNEXT)" page 3 

Mapping strategies, policies and policy needs in the Sumforest 
framework page 4 

The Warsaw workshop on Transnational research needs and sharing of 
research capacities page 5 

Sumforest Workshop on Sustainable Forest Management (Minsk, 
Belarus, 27 May 2015) page 6 

List of Sumforest partners and observers  page 7  

 

https://www.sumforest.org/
mailto:annabelle.amm@gip-ecofor.org
http://www.commonfuture-paris2015.org/
https://www.sumforest.org/events/sumforest-workshop-on-strategic-activities-17-november-2015-paris/
http://www.foresterra.eu/lisbon2015/
http://www.cop21.gouv.fr/en
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Sumforest and "Our 

common future under 

climate change" 

Climate change frames sustainable 
forest management and 
multifunctional forestry in a new 
light. As such it is an important 
component of Sumforest activities. 
But what are the pending issues that 
could be grasped for strategic actions 
of the ERA-NET , including future calls 
for research projects?  

One answer to this question could be 
given after the call for sessions that 
was launched to prepare the 
international scientific conference 
"Our common future under climate 
change" to be held in Paris in 
UNESCO from 7 to 10 July 2015 as a 
potential input to the 21st 
Conference of the Parties to the 
United Nations Framework 
Convention on Climate Change (COP 
21), also organized in Paris from 30 
November to 11 December 2015. As 
a result of this call, several proposals 
addressed forest issues and three of 
them were totally dedicated to 
temperate forest ecosystems. It is 
striking to see that they were all 
pretty much on the same subject so 
that it was proposed to merge them 
into one titled "Climate-smart 
forestry : integrating mitigation and 

adaptation into 
sustainable 
development".  

This session develops the 
idea that forests should be 
managed according to the 
impacts of climate change 
on forest ecosystems and 
their services, and to potential 
adaptation and mitigation measures 
aiming at tackling climate change 
through a reduction of either climate 
drivers (mitigation) or global 
warming consequences (adaptation). 
However, this is a complex issue for 
several reasons. First it depends on 
uncertain factors: unknown future 
socio-economic scenarios and 
different projections by different 
models. Then, when they are 
favorable, trends may be threatened 
by extreme events. Moreover 
multiple forest ecosystem services 
are likely to be differently affected. 
Besides, there are several ways to 
mitigate climate change through 
energy fluxes (albedo), water cycle 
(evapotranspiration) or carbon cycle 
(land-use change, sequestration, 
storage, substitution of materials or 
energies). Thus there are many 
debates about how forests should be 
managed in order to really tackle 
climate change.  

At this stage, it is important to 
remind that mitigation and 

adaptation are two complementary 
ways to deal with climate change. 
They are closely linked: adaptation is 
necessary to maintain or enhance the 
mitigation potential and mitigation 
reduces the need for adaptation. 
Under budget constraints, the 
decision should be made to invest 
more on one or the other. Above all, 
any forest operation has 
consequences and should be 
evaluated from both points of view 
as well as from other sustainable 
forest management criteria.  

Until now, only a few research 
studies consider globally climate 
change and forests. Therefore, a 
major objective is to enhance 
interdisciplinary and cross-cutting 
research, preferably and more 
efficiently at transnational scale and 
for different situations that are 
encountered and deserve to be 
analyzed such as forest conservation 
or plantation, landscape or small-
scale forestry. This will provide a 
scientific input to ongoing debates 
through an analysis of synergies and 
trade-offs between different forest 
management options as regards 
mitigation of climate change and 
adaptation to climate change in the 
overall context of sustainable forest 
management.  

Jean-Luc Peyron, Ecofor 

Arboretum, INRA, Champenous (France) 

http://www.commonfuture-paris2015.org/
http://www.commonfuture-paris2015.org/
http://www.cop21.gouv.fr/en
http://www.cop21.gouv.fr/en
mailto:jean-luc.peyron@gip-ecofor.org
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COST Action FP1403 "Non-

native tree species for 

European forests - 

experiences, risks and 

opportunities (NNEXT)" 

 

The  main objective of this COST 
Action (late 2014 - November 2018) 
is the establishment of a platform of 
researchers involved in introduction 
and establishment of non-native tree 
species in European forest 
ecosystems, as well as contemporary 
and in-depth analysis of risks and 
challenges related to introduction of 
such plant species in European 
forestry.   

Introduction and management of 
introduced (non-native) tree species 
in Europe have a long history dating 
as far back as the 17th century, and 
there is vast knowledge and 
experience regarding the various 
economic, environmental and 
practical aspects. If the needs for 
energy and materials during the 
industrialization period were the 
main cause for the initial efforts in 
European forestry for utilization of 
non-native tree species, today, 
biomass production and C 
sequestration could be regarded as 
the main drivers for the need of 
further investigations in this field. As 
opposed to the past, environmental 
aspects have gained greater 
importance, so that the issues of the 
adaptive capacity of forests with non-
native tree species to long-term 
climate change need to be addressed 
through broader and deeper 
research efforts. Some non-native 

tree species (Pseudotsuga menziesii, 
Pinus ponderosa, Robinia 
pseudoacacia and Ailanthus 
altissima) have been shown to be 
less susceptible to drought stress 
which is associated with longer dry 
periods and increasing temperatures, 
directly related with climate change. 
France and Germany are countries 
where planting and testing of such 
species is well advanced in order to 
investigate their potential for 
adaptation to climate change. Also, 
introduction of non-native species 
poses serious economical risks and 
threats, of which the following are 
the most obvious: negative effects on 
the multifunctional role of European 
forest ecosystems and their role in 
the provision of goods and services; 
adverse effects on nature 
conservation and devaluation of the 
habitat currently provided by forests, 
and loss of biodiversity of European 
forest ecosystems. At present, 
information and data on the various 
important aspects of non-native tree 
species are mainly scattered and 
available only at regional or country 
level, with reports and data often 
published in local language and with 
limited distribution. This 
fragmentation of knowledge is the 
main motive for establishing a 
broader European platform for 
sharing of knowledge in this field of 
expertise. Only through a wider 
scopes of investigation and through 
coordinated efforts will it be possible 
to address  controversial issues and 
re-think the potential of non-native 
tree species in Europe. With such 
information, important questions can 
be addressed such as whether non-
native tree species can be considered 
as a potential Ψadaptation ƻǇǘƛƻƴΩ in 
order to tackle the impact of the 
expected climate change influences, 

having in mind the potential 
invasiveness of these tree species 
with respect to native plant 
communities, and whether further 
developments will lead to 
introduction and establishment of 
new pathogens and insects and 
eventually cause further loss in 
biodiversity within European forest 
ecosystems. 

NNEXT will allow provision of 
information related to differences in 
theoretical positions, alternative 
multifunctional silviculture 
management strategies, nature 
conservation and biodiversity issues 
related to the non-native plantations 
in European regions. This information 
must be synthesized in order to be 
disseminated to a broader audience 
of environmental groups, timber 
industries, politicians, policy makers 
and the public across Europe. It will 
also help coordinate and drive a 
wider research platform of many 
involved parties, not only related to 
determination of best practices and 
management options, but also to 
investigate risks and challenges.  

So far, there are research institutions 
and individuals involved in this Action 
originating from 31 European 
countries.  

Additional information is available via 
the official COST portal or directly via 
the NNEXT website, as well as from 
the chair of the action, Dr Marcela 
Van Loo. 

 

Kiril Sotirovski, UKIM 

http://www.cost.eu/COST_Actions/fps/Actions/FP1403
http://nnext.boku.ac.at/
mailto:marcela.vanloo@boku.ac.at
mailto:marcela.vanloo@boku.ac.at
mailto:kirils@sf.ukim.edu.mk
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Mapping strategies, policies 

and policy needs in the 

Sumforest framework 

 

In order to reach the goals of 
Sumforest, it is necessary to 
understand the existing forest-
related policy frameworks in the 
European Union (EU). Therefore, in 
the first part of the Work package 3, 
a cross-sectoral review was 
conducted. The report explains the 
impact of different forest related 
policies like environmental policy, 
trade and industry policy or energy 
and climate policy on forests. Legally 
binding, as well as non-legally binding 
instruments for different policy areas 
are presented. As there is no direct 
competence for forests at the EU 
level, forest strategies and action 
plans are voluntary. Therefore, there 
is the danger that forests will not be 
able to contribute to all sorts of goals 
ǎǳŎƘ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ άнл-20-нл ǘŀǊƎŜǘǎέ όнл ҈ 
reduction in CO2 emissions compared 
to 1990 levels, 20 % of the energy 
coming from renewables and a 20 % 
increase in energy efficiency by the 
year 2020) at the same time and a lot 

of trade-offs between various forest 
uses ς for example the extraction of 
biomass, recreation and water 
protection ς exist already. Further 
imbalances stem from the fact that 
only for legally binding instruments 
such as the Natura 2000 directive 
infringement procedures can be 
started.  

The next step was to identify 
emerging issues with high policy 
relevance related to the forest-based 
sector. Thus, a questionnaire for the 
scientific community was designed 
by the Sumforest project Foresight 
Panel. The aim of the survey was to 
identify the views on issues that are 
recognized as very important by the 
scientific community, and have 
important policy implications, but are 
not yet receiving adequate attention 
from the policy community. 28 
researchers from 10 countries 
responded. As a result, a prioritized 
list of 10 emerging issue topics was 
developed. Identified emerging 
ƛǎǎǳŜǎ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜ ŦƻǊ ŜȄŀƳǇƭŜ ά/ƭƛƳŀǘŜ 
change and trade-offs between 
carbon sequestration and material or 
ŜƴŜǊƎȅ ǎǳōǎǘƛǘǳǘƛƻƴέΣ ά¢ƘŜ ŦǳǘǳǊŜ ƻŦ 
bioeconomy and forest-ōŀǎŜŘ ǎŜŎǘƻǊέ 
ƻǊ άaŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ŎƘŀƴƎŜǎΣ Ǌƛǎƪǎ 
ŀƴŘ ǳƴŎŜǊǘŀƛƴǘƛŜǎ ƛƴ ŦƻǊŜǎǘǊȅέ όCƛƎǳǊŜ 

1). The results can be used by the 
Sumforest-project to identify 
relevant call-topics, but also by other 
parties for a wider scoping and 
steering of research in the European 
forest-based sector. As far as 
information is available, this type of a 
systematic Foresight Panel with 
forest scientists forming the panel 
and identifying the emerging issues 
has not been carried out previously 
in the European forest-based sector.  

Thirdly, a document identifying the 
main information needs of policy 
makers was developed. Difficulties of 
implementation such as different 
time scales of politicians, scientists 
and forest ecosystems or the 
information gap between scientists 
and policy makers were acquainted. 
Various approaches to work towards 
a sustainable and multifunctional 
forestry were introduced, including 
the backcasting process, the bottom-
up approach or transition 
management. To gather information 
on the implementation of existing 
research results of the forest-based 
sector in forest policies, a short 
online survey addressing forest policy 
makers was conducted. Results of 
the survey include for example the 
wish of forest policy makers for a 

short summary of 
research results with 
clear guidance for 
implementation of the 
results. The report 
highlights how science 
could better support 
national and EU forest 
policies and the 
results will be 
incorporated in 
preparing the 
Sumforest calls for 
projects. 

 

Vera Steinberg, BLE 
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Figure 1: Top issues from the Sumforest survey 
(Percent) 
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The Warsaw workshop on 

Transnational research 

needs and sharing of 

research capacities 

 

On 6 May 2015 Sumforest organized 
a workshop at IBL Forest Research 
LƴǎǘƛǘǳǘŜ ƛƴ {ťƪƻŎƛƴ {ǘŀǊȅ Ƨǳǎǘ ƻǳǘǎƛŘŜ 
Warsaw. The workshop was part of 
the second work package of 
Sumforest ς Mapping Research 
Programmes and Capacities, and was 
attended by over 40 leaders and 
representatives of research 
organisations in partner countries, 
stakeholders from e.g. industry and 
conservation organisations, and by 
Sumforest partners. 

The Sumforest coordinator, Martin 
Greimel, opened the workshop and 
highlighted its role in the overall 
work of Sumforest. A welcome 
address was also given by Janusz 
Czerepko, director of IBL. 

A basis for the workshop discussions 
were the results from a 
questionnaire responded by 95 
research organisations in partner 
countries (see Report D2.2). Jan 
Svensson (FORMAS), Sweden, leader 
of work package 2, introduced the 
main results from the questionnaire 
regarding current research, potential 
future research areas, and existing as 
well as desired access to research 

infrastructure. The purpose and 
structure of the workshop was then 
presented by Karin Perhans 
(FORMAS).  

The main part of the workshop was 
devoted to group discussions, divided 
into two sessions:  

1. What are the needs and 
priorities for transnational 
research collaboration in 
terms of capacities? 

2. What are the needs and 
priorities for transnational 
research collaboration in 
terms of research areas and 
topics? 

The workshop participants were 
divided among five discussion tables 
and equipped with a template to be 
filled in at each table . Their 
challenging task was to agree on the 
five to eight most important issues 
regarding research infrastructure and 
future research topics for 

collaboration, 
respectively. Much 

emphasis was placed on 
outlining what specific 
actions would be 
needed to facilitate 
sharing of infrastructure 
and to develop 
potentially important 
research areas. During 
coffee and lunch breaks, 
the template from each 
discussion group was 

put up on the wall and each 
participant was asked to provide 
feedback on the degree of priority of 
the issues by setting color stickers on 
the templates (Figure 1). 

Among the issues identified as 
important in terms of research 
capacities were human resources and 
capacity building, increased mobility 
and contact points between 
researchers, policymakers and 
industry/forest owners, and 
harmonization of methodology and 
data within long-term experimental 
plots and field trials. In terms of 
topics, risk assessment and risk 
management, long-term 
sustainability in soil productivity and 
chemistry, and trade-offs within 
multifunctional use of forests were 
all identified as prioritized themes.  

The full set of results from the 
workshop will be analyzed, together 
with the results from the 
questionnaire, and presented in the 
Sumforest report D2.3, due by the 
end of July. The outcome of the 
workshop will also provide important 
input to the strategic action plan and 
scope for the first joint call, 
developed in the fourth work 
package of Sumforest. 

 

Karin Perhans & Jan Svensson, 
FORMAS 

Figure 1: Filled template from the group session 1. 

mailto:Karin.Perhans@formas.se
mailto:Jan.Svensson@formas.se
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Sumforest Workshop on 

Sustainable Forest 

Management 

Minsk (Belarus), 27 May 2015 

 

The objective was to share and 
discuss views on the potential to 
increase cooperation and setting 
joint priorities for research needs in 
the field of sustainable forest 
management (SFM) in EU, Russia 
and the Eastern Partnership (EaP) 
countries. 

The workshop was organized by the 
European Forest Institute (EFI), 
together with the Polish Forest 
Research Institute (IBL) . For the first 
time, during the last decade it 
brought together scientists and 
scientific managers from Russia, and 
all six Eastern Partnership countries: 
Armenia, Azerbaijan, Belarus, 
Georgia, Moldova, and Ukraine, and 
the EU, to discuss transnational 
forest research cooperation at the 
Pan- European level. The host 
country provided support to this 
event through the National Academy 
of Sciences and its Institute of 
Experimental Botany, in particular. 

Sumforest Coordinator Martin 
Greimel welcomed the participants 
and introduced Sumforest. Then 
Marc Palahi, Director of EFI, 
underlined the need for cooperation, 
last Mikhail Nikiforov from National 
Academy of Sciences, presented 
national system of scientific support 
of sustainable forest management in 
Belarus. 

A comparative analysis of SFM 
research priorities in EU and EaP 
countries and Russia as well as on 
identification of financial 
mechanisms to be used for 

supporting research work and joint 
calls for proposals, was built. Janusz 
Czerepko, IBL Director, presented the 
results of mapping related to SFM 
research capacities in EU. Then Elena 
Kulikova, from EFI, presented the 
results of mapping related to SFM 
research capacities and priorities in 
Russia and EaP countries. 

During the first panel discussion 
άJoint forest research priorities and 
challenges in EU, Russia and EaP 
countriesέ όƳƻŘŜǊŀǘŜŘ ōȅ 9ƭŜƴŀ 
Kulikova), representatives of all 
respective countries were invited to 
characterize the current forest 
research priorities and challenges 
and identify joint priorities for 
research. In spite of significant 
differences in the status, support and 
financing of forest research, they 
identified similar topics for future 
research, from being quite traditional 
ƭƛƪŜ άŦƻǊŜǎǘ ƳƻƴƛǘƻǊƛƴƎ ŀƴŘ 
ƛƴǾŜƴǘƻǊȅέ ŀƴŘ άǎƛƭǾƛŎǳƭǘǳǊŜέ ǘƻ ǉǳƛǘŜ 
ƴŜǿ ƭƛƪŜ άŦƻǊŜǎǘ ŀƴŘ ŎƭƛƳŀǘŜ ŎƘŀƴƎŜέΣ 
άǊƛǎƪ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘέΣ άōƛƻŜŎƻƴƻƳȅ 
ŀƴŘ ōƛƻŜƴŜǊƎȅέΦ 

The second part of the workshop was 
devoted to consideration of forest 
research support and financial 
mechanisms used in EU and partner 
countries. Particular presentations 
were prepared by Martin Greimel 
with regard to EU and Irina Kuklina 
from the International Centre for 
Innovations in Science, Technology 
and Education of the Russian 
Federation.  The second panel 
ŘƛǎŎǳǎǎƛƻƴ ǿŀǎ άIdentifying financial 

mechanisms used for forest research 
support in EaP countries and to be 
used for joint calls for proposalsέΦ Lǘ ƛǎ 
an important step forward, because 
the workshop results will be used as 
background work for a possible later 
joint Call for proposals targeted at EU 
and Russia/EaP on related to SFM 
research. 

For Russia and the EaP countries, the 
last 20 years can be characterized as 
years of deep changes in the 
economic and  political situation, as 
well as the weakening of institutional 
structures. This is also reflected in 
involved forest research area 
institutions. Forest related research 
is characterized in reality by 
processes of fragmentation and 
broken international links, 
dissociation, lack of resources, lack of 
support in research infrastructure 
maintenance, staff aging, and lack of 
young researchers, etc. Due to the 
points mentioned above, there is an 
urgent need to pay attention to 
capacity building and research 
management support. 

 

Elena Kulikova, EFI 

mailto:elena.kulikova@efi.int


ERA-NET Sumforest, June 2015  - 7 - 

Partners 
Country Institution Contact  Website 

Austria BMLFUW (The Austrian Federal Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry, Environment and Water Management) Martin Greimel http://www.bmlfuw.gv.at/en.html 

Europe EFI (European Forest Institute) Robert Mavsar http://www.efi.int/portal/  

Scandinavia SNS (Nordic Forest Research) Inga Bödeker http://www.nordicforestresearch.org/ 

Finland MMM (Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry) Liisa Saarenmaa http://www.mmm.fi/en/index/frontpage.html 

France ECOFOR Annabelle Amm http://www.gip-ecofor.org/ 

Germany BLE (Federal Office for Agriculture and Food) Johannes Bender http://www.ble.de/EN/00_Home/
homepage_node.html 

Germany BMEL (Federal Ministry of Food and Agriculture) Thorsten Hinrichs http://www.bmel.de/DE/Startseite/
startseite_node.html 

Greece DUTh (Democritus University of Thrace) Kalliopi Radoglou http://duth.gr/education/campus/
index.en.shtml 

Greece YPEKA (Ministry of Environment, Energy and Climate Change) Argyro Zerva http://www.ypeka.gr/ 

Ireland DAFM (Department of Agriculture, Food and the Marine) Tom McDonald https://www.agriculture.gov.ie/ 

Italy MIPAAF (Ministy of Agricultural Food and Forestry) Annamaria Marzetti 
http://www.politicheagricole.it/flex/cm/
pages/ServeBLOB.php/L/IT/IDPagina/202 

Latvia LAAFS (Latvian Academy of Agricultural and Forestry Sciences) Baiba Rivza http://llmza.lv/index.php/en/ 

Lithuania MERL (Ministry of Environment of the Republic of Lithuania) Nerijus Kupstaitis http://www.am.lt/VI/en/VI/index.php 

F.Y.R.of Macedonia UKIM (Ss. Cyril and Methodius University in Skopje - Faculty of Forestry) Kiril Sotirovski http://www.sf.ukim.edu.mk/en/index.htm 

Norway RCN (The Research Council of Norway) Petter Nilsen http://www.forskningsradet.no/no/
Forsiden/1173185591033 

Poland IBL (Forest Research Institute) Adam Kaliszewski http://www.ibles.pl/en/web/guest/home 

Slovak Republic MPRV SR (Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Development of the Slovak Republic) Boris Greguska http://www.mpsr.sk/index.php?start 

Slovenia MIZS (Ministry of Education, Science, and Sport of the Republic of Slovenia) Kim Turk http://www.mizs.gov.si/en/ 

Slovenia MKGP (Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Food of the Republic of Slovenia) Robert Rezonja http://www.mko.gov.si/en/ 

Spain INIA (The National Institute for Agriculture and Food Research and Technology) Rocío Lansac Martín  http://www.inia.es/IniaPortal/
verPresentacionIngles.action 

Sweden Formas (The Swedish Research Council for Environment, Agricultural Sciences and Spatial Planning) Jan Svensson http://formas.se/en/ 

Switzerland FOEN (Federal Office for the Environment) Christian Küchli http://www.bafu.admin.ch/?lang=en 

UK FCRA (Forestry Commission Research Agency) James Pendelbury http://www.forestry.gov.uk/research 

Observers 
European  

Country Institution Contact  Website 

Bosnia-Herzegovina ¦ƴƛǾŜǊǎƛǘȅ ƻŦ {ŀǊŀƧŜǾƻΣ CŀŎǳƭǘȅ ƻŦ CƻǊŜǎǘǊȅ ό¦ƴƛǾŜǊȊƛǘŜǘ ǳ {ŀǊŀƧŜǾǳΣ ~ǳƳŀǊǎƪƛ CŀƪǳƭǘŜǘύ Mersudin Avdibegovic  www.sfsa.unsa.ba 

Netherlands University of Wageningen, Forest Ecology and Forest Management Group Frits Mohren G.M.J.  
www.wageningenur.nl/en/Expertise-Services/
Chair-groups/Environmental-Sciences/Forest-
Ecology-and-Forest-Management-Group.htm 

Germany Johann Heinrich von Thünen Institute, Federal Research Institute for Rural Areas, Forestry and Fisheries   www.ti.bund.de/en 

Switzerland 
Swiss Federal Institute for Forest, Snow and Landscape Research (Eidgenössische Forschungsanstalt für 
Wald, Schnee und Landschaft WSL) 

Adrian Lanz 
www.wsl.ch/index_EN 

Christoph Hegg 

Belgium Research Foundation - Flanders Olivier Boehme www.fwo.be/en/ 

        

International 
Russia St. Petersburg State Forest Technical University Alexander Alekseev http://www.ftacademy.ru/ 

Russia Volga State University of Technology 

Evgeny M. Romanov 

www.eng.marstu.net/ Rector 

Info 

Russia Moscow State Forest University 
NIKITIN Vladimir Valentinovich 

www.msfu.ru/eng/ 
MGUL 

Russia Voronezh State Forestry Engineering Academy 

Vladimir Mikhailovich Bugakov 

www.vglta.vrn.ru/?lang=en Rectorat 

VGLTA 

Russia Northern Research Institute of Forestry 

Sergey Veniaminovich Yaroslavtsev 

http://www.sevniilh-arh.ru/en/ Forestry 

sevniilh 
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